Public Document Pack

Crawley Borough Council
Planning Committee
Agenda for the Planning Committee which will be held in Committee
Room A & B - Town Hall, on Monday, 21 October 2019 at 7.30 pm
Nightline Telephone No. 07881 500 227

Head of Legal, Democracy and HR

Membership:
Councillors

S Malik (Chair), T McAleney (Vice-Chair), L M Ascough, A Belben,
J Hart, I T Irvine, K L Jaggard, M Mwagale, J Purdy, P C Smith and
G Thomas

Please contact Democratic.Services@crawley.gov.uk if you have any queries regarding this
agenda.
Published 11 October 2019

Emergency procedure for meetings will be circulated to Councillors and visitors
attending this meeting. Please familiarise yourself with these procedures and the
location of fire exits.

Switchboard: 01293 438000
Main fax: 01293 511803
Minicom: 01293 405202 DX:
57139 Crawley 1
www.crawley.gov.uk

Page 1

Town Hall
The Boulevard
Crawley
West Sussex
RH10 1UZ

The order of business may change at the Chair’s discretion

Part A Business (Open to the Public)
Pages

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Disclosures of Interest
In accordance with the Council's Code
of Conduct, Councillors of the Council
are reminded that it is a requirement to
declare interests where appropriate.

3.

Lobbying Declarations
The Planning Code of Conduct requires
Councillors who have been lobbied,
received correspondence or been
approached by an interested party with
respect to any planning matter should
declare this at the meeting which
discusses the matter. Councillors should
declare if they have been lobbied at this
point in the agenda.

4.

Minutes

5-8

To approve as a correct record the
minutes of the Planning Committee held
on 24 September 2019.

5.

Planning Application
CR/2019/0548/FUL - 6 Pine Shaw,
Pound Hill, Crawley

Pound Hill South &
Worth

9 - 14

Pound Hill South &
Worth

15 - 22

To consider report PES/325c of the
Head of Economy and Planning.
RECOMMENDATION to PERMIT.

6.

Planning Application
CR/2019/0634/FUL - 24 Clive Way,
Pound Hill, Crawley
To consider report PES/325d of the
Head of Economy and Planning.
RECOMMENDATION to PERMIT

7.

Crawley Borough Council Tree
Preservation Order No. 07/2019 Trees to Rear of 8-12 Normanhurst
Close, Three Bridges - 07/2019

Page 2

23 - 30

Pages
To consider report PES/339 of the Head
of Economy and Planning.
RECOMMENDATION to CONFIRM

8.

Section 106 Monies - Q1&Q2
2019/20

31 - 36

To consider report PES/337 of the Head
of Economy and Planning.

9.

Supplemental Agenda
Any urgent item(s) complying with
Section 100(B) of the Local Government
Act 1972.

With reference to planning applications, PLEASE NOTE:
Background Paper:- Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030
Any necessary pre-committee site visits for applications to be considered at this
meeting will be held on Thursday 17 October 2019 at 10.00am. Please be
aware that members of the public are not to approach members of the
Committee or Council officers to discuss issues associated with the respective
planning applications on these visits.

This information is available in different formats and languages. If you or
someone you know would like help with understanding this document please
contact the Democratic Services Team on 01293 438549 or email:
democratic.services@crawley.gov.uk

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item
4
Planning Committee (15)
24 September 2019

Crawley Borough Council
Minutes of Planning Committee
Tuesday, 24 September 2019 at 7.30 pm
Councillors Present:
S Malik (Chair)
T McAleney (Vice-Chair)
A Belben, I T Irvine, K L Jaggard, J Purdy, P C Smith and G Thomas

Officers Present:
Valerie Cheesman

Principal Planning Officer

Heather Girling

Democratic Services Officer

Linda Saunders

Solicitor

Hamish Walke

Principal Planning Officer

Apologies for Absence:
Councillor J Hart
Absent:
Councillor L M Ascough and F Guidera

1.

Disclosures of Interest
No disclosures of interests were made.

2.

Lobbying Declarations
No lobbying declarations were made.

3.

Minutes
The minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 27 August 2019 were
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

4.

Planning Application CR/2018/0891/FUL - EDF Building, Russell Way,
Three Bridges, Crawley
The Committee considered report PES/324(a) of the Head of Economy and Planning
which proposed as follows:
Erection of 3 Storey Side Extension Comprising 12 x Two Bedroom Flats (Amended
Description & Amended Plans Received)

Page 5

Agenda Item
4
Planning Committee (16)
24 September 2019

Councillors A Belben, Jaggard, Purdy and P Smith declared they had visited the site.
The Principal Planning Officer (VC) provided a verbal summation of the application
and updated the Committee regarding the effect of shadowing upon neighbouring
properties. Further information was provided regarding the proposal to incorporate a
green wall and wintergarden balconies which would assist in improving the character
of the streetscene and noise prevention.
Mr Roy Holt (on behalf of the Agent) addressed the meeting in support of the
application. The Committee then considered the application. In response to the
queries raised, the Principal Planning Officer:










Confirmed that the acoustic overheating vents had been detailed within the
Acoustic Assessment Noise report, which also included the use of the
wintergardens to address the noise and to provide suitable accommodation. This
ventilation system provided fresh air into the units and all the measures would be
secured via condition 18.
Clarified that the bin storage requirements had been discussed with the council’s
Refuse Team and further details would be require to discharge the suggested
condition 14 including design, appearance and practicalities.
Verified that the provision of the green wall would be in accordance with an
ongoing maintenance management plan, and subject to condition.
Confirmed that the windows within the wintergarden balconies would open and the
balcony details would also be secured by condition.
Clarified the viability assessment findings and whilst the proposal had required 4.8
affordable units to be provided to meet Crawley Borough Local Plan Policy H4, the
provision of 4 x affordable rented properties had been agreed. This would be
secured through a legal agreement. It was noted that the deficit of 0.8 unit was
deemed justified by the benefits of affordable rented properties rather than there
being a greater mix of tenure types.
Provided an explanation regarding the Shadow Study. The month of March had
been included as an indicator to show the amount of light and overshadowing that
was currently experienced and the situation with the proposed extension.
Noted that a S106 agreement would secure a contribution towards replacement
trees on site together with an off-site provision of children’s/youth play, amenity
green space and allotments, which was subsequently welcomed by the
Committee.

RESOLVED
Permit, subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement, together with the
conditions and informatives set out in report PES/324(a).

5.

Planning Application CR/2019/0503/FUL - 5 Perryfield Road, Southgate,
Crawley
The Committee considered report PES/324(b) of the Head of Economy and Planning
which proposed as follows:
Conversion of Existing Building and Erection of a Two Storey Rear Extension and
Erection of a Front Porch to create 4 Self-Contained 1no. Bedroom Affordable
Residential Flats (Amended Plans Received).
Councillors A Belben, Jaggard and Purdy declared they had visited the site.

Page 6

Agenda Item
4
Planning Committee (17)
24 September 2019

The Principal Planning Officer (HW) provided a verbal summation of the application.
In so doing he explained that the main concerns raised had been the use of materials
for the extension and the loss of the chimney stacks. To alleviate these concerns it
was proposed to use second hand bricks to ensure the character and appearance
was maintained, whilst the applicant argued that the cost to retain the chimneys would
be detrimental to the viability of the scheme. It was suggested that the proposed
residential use would be appropriate as it would bring a building back into use in a
residential area.
Ms Sarah Sheath (on behalf of the Agent and Applicant) addressed the meeting in
support of the application. The Committee then considered the application. In
response to the Committee’s queries, the Principal Planning Officer:






Confirmed there had been concerns raised regarding the loss of the chimney
stacks, however other properties within the vicinity had removed chimney stacks
and despite this loss it was considered that the proposal was acceptable in terms
of design, particularly given the proposed use of second hand matching bricks.
Clarified the parking, access and impact on highways. The amendments to the
site access would effectively equate to a net loss of one on-street parking space,
with a total of 4 spaces being provided within the proposed site. It was considered
that the current disabled parking bays may not relate to the application site.
Noted that a S106 agreement would secure a contribution towards on-site
affordable housing together with replacement trees.

RESOLVED
Permit, subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement, together with the
conditions and informatives set out in report PES/324(b).

Closure of Meeting
With the business of the Planning Committee concluded, the Chair declared the
meeting closed at 8.26 pm
S Malik
Chair

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
CRAWLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 21 October 2019
REPORT NO: PES/325(c)

REFERENCE NO: CR/2019/0548/FUL
LOCATION:
WARD:
PROPOSAL:

6 PINE SHAW, POUND HILL, CRAWLEY
Pound Hill South and Worth
ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION

TARGET DECISION DATE:
CASE OFFICER:

4 October 2019

Mrs C. Miller-Bassi

APPLICANTS NAME:
AGENTS NAME:

Mr & Mrs A Belben
Mr A Ryrie

PLANS & DRAWINGS CONSIDERED:
Drawing Number
AB 01

Revision
B

Drawing Title
Existing & Proposed Floorplan & Elevations

CONSULTEE NOTIFICATIONS & RESPONSES:1.
2.

National Air Traffic Services (NATS)
CBC Planning Arboricultural Officer

3.

CBC Countryside & Open Space

No safeguarding objection.
No objection subject to details of suitable tree
protection for trees in rear of garden.
None received.

NEIGHBOUR NOTIFICATIONS:5 and 7 Pine Shaw
RESPONSES RECEIVED:None
REASON FOR REPORTING TO COMMITTEE:The application has been submitted by Crawley Borough Council Councillors.
THE APPLICATION SITE:1.1

The application site occupies a corner plot located at the north west of a cul de sac within a
residential area. The site comprises a two storey, detached dwelling, which has a converted loft
with rear dormer and a single storey rear extension which links the single garage to the main
dwelling. There is off street parking for 3 cars on the driveway and the front garden is laid to lawn.

1.2

The site lies within an area designated as Structural Landscaping (Local Plan Policy CH7).

1.3

A line of six trees runs across the rear of the back garden, which are covered by Tree Preservation
Order: The Crawley Borough (Worth Park Avenue No.3) TPO 1971 Ref. 16.8.6.

THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:-

Page 9

Agenda Item 5
2.1

This application proposes a rear single storey extension with a hipped roof containing a central flat
section and three roof lights. The extension would project 5.2m from the rear (north west) elevation
of the main dwelling and 4m from that of the existing rear extension to the rear of the garage. It
would have a width of 7.2m. The eaves height would be 2.6m to match the rear ground floor
extension and would have a maximum roof height of 3.6 metres. The extension would be finished in
a render to match the existing on the rear of the house, with uPVC windows and doors, and a part
tiled, part flat roof. The rear elevation would contain a window and a pair of sliding patio doors and
a window in each side elevation. It would provide an extended kitchen/dining room area.

PLANNING HISTORY:3.1

Relevant planning history includes:
CR/2002/0677/FUL – Permit – Conversion of existing loft and erection of rear dormer
CR/1996/0047/FUL – Approve – Erection of single storey rear extension

PLANNING POLICY:4.1

National Planning Policy Framework (2019)
The NPPF states that applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. More specifically:
 Paragraph 11 (Presumption in favour of sustainable development) states plans and decisions
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development and development proposals
that accord with an up-to-date development plan should be approved without delay.
 Section 12 (Achieving well-designed places) states the creation of high quality buildings and
places is fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. Good
design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and
work and helps make development acceptable to communities.

4.2

Crawley Borough Local Plan (2015-2030) (adopted December 2015)
The relevant policies include:
 Policy SD1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development. In line with the planned
approach to Crawley as a new town, and the spatial patterns relating to the neighbourhood
principles, when considering development proposals the council will take a positive approach to
approving development which is sustainable.
 Policy CH2: Principles of Good Urban Design in order to assist in the creation, retention or
enhancement of successful places.
 Policy CH3: Normal Requirements of All New Development states all proposals for development
will be required to make a positive contribution to the area; be of a high quality urban design,
provide and retain a good standard of amenity for all nearby and future occupants of land and
buildings; be able to meet its own operational requirements necessary for the safe and proper
use of the site; retain existing individual or groups of trees; incorporate “Secure by Design”
principles and demonstrate how the Building for Life 12 criteria would be delivered.
 Policy CH6: Tree Planting and Replacement Standards. Landscape proposals for residential
development should contribute to the character and appearance of the town by including at least
one new tree for each new dwelling, of an appropriate species and planted in an appropriate
location. Where development proposals would result in the loss of trees, applicants must
identify which trees are to be removed and replaced in order to mitigate for the visual impact
resulting from the loss of the tree canopies.
 Policy CH7: Structural Landscaping - Areas of soft landscape that make an important
contribution to the town and its neighbourhoods, in terms of character and appearance,
structure, screening or softening, have been identified on the Local Plan Map. Development
proposals that affect this role should demonstrate the visual impact of the proposals and should
protect and/or enhance structural landscaping, where appropriate.
 Policy IN4: Car and Cycle Parking Standards states that development will be permitted where
proposals provide the appropriate amount of car and cycle parking to meet its needs when it is
assessed against the borough council’s car and cycle parking standards. A 3 plus bedroom
house should have 2-3 parking spaces.
 Development proposals must adhere to any relevant supplementary planning guidance
produced by the council including residential extensions.

Page 10

Agenda Item 5
4.3

Emerging Crawley Borough Local Plan 2020 – 2035 (June 2019)
The Local Plan Review 2020-2035 is under consultation and therefore limited weight should be
given to the following applicable policies:
 Policy SD1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development.
 Policy CD2: Making Successful Places: Principles of Good Urban Design.
 Policy CD3: Local Character and Design of New Development.
 Policy CD6: Normal Requirements of All New Development.

4.4

Urban Design Supplementary Planning Document (adopted October 2016)
The Urban Design SPD is a non-statutory document which supplements the policies of the Local
Plan and is applicable to this application. It contains guidelines on the standards the Council
expects for the public design and the design of extensions. It also includes new Crawley Borough
Parking Standards and as such the minimum parking standards for this application are 2-3 spaces.
In particular, it states that:
 ‘Overshadowing or dominating neighbours’ houses and gardens can be avoided by keeping rear
extensions relatively small as compared to the size of the main buildings and the gardens in
which they stand.’
 ‘A rear extension should not consume the entirety of a dwelling’s private amenity space. A
garden should be retained with a minimum depth of 10.5m measured from the extension’s rear
external wall to the property’s rear boundary in length, in order to ensure adequate private
outdoor space.’
 An extension with good design in mind will relate appropriately to the parent dwelling’s character
and style, dimensions, materials and finishes of the parent dwelling and the character of the
neighbourhood.
 Furthermore, when considering an extension it is important to think about the impact the
development may have on your neighbours and the wider area’.
 ‘Development should incorporate materials and colours that match the existing dwelling’.
 ‘The roof form above an extension will contribute to the appearance of the extension and the
dwelling as a whole. A roof design that sits in harmony with the existing roof will usually be more
acceptable’.

4.5

Green Infrastructure Supplementary Planning Document (adopted October 2016)
Includes guidance on meeting the requirements of policy CH7 Structural Landscaping, designing for
trees, and tree protection/retention,

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:5.1

The main issues in the determination of this application are:
 The design & appearance of the proposal and its impact on the dwelling, the street scene &
wider area
 The impact on neighbouring properties and the amenities of the occupiers
 Impact on trees and structural landscaping
The design & appearance of the proposal and its impact on the dwelling, street scene & wider area

5.2

The application proposes a single storey extension to the rear of the dwelling. It would not be visible
in the street scene when viewed from Pine Shaw due to its rear siting or when viewed from Worth
Park Avenue due to the mature vegetation and tall trees to the rear of the site. The extension would
be finished in render with a part tiled roof to match the existing property. It is considered that the
proposal would be subservient to the existing dwelling and the design and scale of the extension
would be in keeping with the character of the area. The proposal is, therefore, considered to be in
accordance with Policy CH3 of Crawley’s Local Plan Policies and Urban Design SPD and the NPPF
(2019).
Impact on neighbouring properties and the amenities of the occupiers

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

5.3

The neighbouring properties most affected by the proposal would be no.5 and no. 7 Pine Shaw.

5.4

The neighbouring dwelling at no.5 is sited at a right angle to no.6, being to the front and side (south
west) of the application dwelling and, as such, the proposed development would be screened from
no.5 due to the orientation of the dwellings and the position of the extension. As such, no
unacceptable overlooking, overshadowing or overbearing impact would result in regard to the
neighbouring amenity at no.5.

5.5

With regard to the impact on no.7, the extension would be sited centrally in the rear elevation, with a
distance of 6.5m from the side (north east) boundary and would not impede a 45 degree angle
taken from the edge of the nearest neighbouring window. It is therefore considered that given its
single storey character, the extension would not be considered to result in a harmful overlooking,
overbearing or overshadowing impact in respect of the occupants of no.7.

5.6

The proposal would not therefore result in a harmful impact on the amenities enjoyed by the
occupants of neighbouring properties and would accord with the relevant Local Plan Policies, the
Urban Design SPD and the NPPF in this regard.
Impact on trees and structural landscaping

5.7

Six trees in the rear garden are covered by Tree Preservation Orders. The development would be
sited at a minimum distance of 5.5m from the nearest of these trees. The CBC Planning
Arboricultural Officer has been consulted and has advised that there are no objections to the
proposed development subject to an acceptable Tree Protection Plan and construction exclusion
zone around the root area of these trees. A condition to ensure that the development is
implemented in accordance with a Tree Protection Plan to be submitted to and approved by the LPA
before commencement is therefore recommended

5.8

The site lies within a Structural Landscaping Character area, (Local Plan Policy CH7), that runs
along Worth Park Avenue and extends across the rear gardens of the properties to the south. An
assessment needs to be made regarding the impact of the proposed development on the soft
landscape and its important contribution to the local area. In this case, there would be no impact on
the trees in the rear garden due to the siting of the proposed development and views of the trees
from Worth Park Avenue would be retained. Due to the proposed design, siting and single storey
character of the proposal, views from Pine Shaw to the trees located to the rear/side (north and
north-west) of the dwelling would be maintained. The impact upon the Structural Landscaping is
therefore considered to be acceptable.
Parking considerations

5.9

The proposal would not increase the number of bedrooms in the property which would remain a 5bedroom dwelling. According to the Urban Design SPD, the minimum parking standards for a 3
plus bedroom dwelling in this location are 2-3 spaces. The proposal would not affect the existing
on-site car parking which currently provides off-street parking for 4 cars. As such, the parking
provision would comply with the relevant policies.

CONCLUSIONS:6.1

In conclusion, it is considered the design and appearance of the proposal is acceptable and would
not have a harmful impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring properties or to the visual
amenity of the existing street scene. Therefore, subject to a tree protection condition, the proposal
is in accordance with the policies outlined in the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030 and it is
recommended to grant permission for this application subject to conditions.

RECOMMENDATION RE: CR/2019/0548/FUL
Permit subject to the following conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years from the date of
this permission.

Page 12

Agenda Item 5

REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.
2.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the
approved plans listed below:
(Drawing numbers to be added)
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper Planning.

3.

The materials and finishes of the external walls (and roof(s)) of the building(s) hereby permitted shall
match in colour and texture those of the existing building(s).
REASON: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local
Plan 2015-2030.

4.

No development, including site works of any description, shall take place on the site unless and until
all the existing trees to be retained on the site have been protected by a fence to be approved by the
Local Planning Authority erected around each tree or group of vegetation at a radius from the bole or
boles of 5 metres or such distance as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Within the areas so fenced off the existing ground level shall be neither raised nor lowered and no
materials, temporary buildings, plant machinery or surplus soil shall be placed or stored thereon
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. If any trenches for services are
required in the fenced off areas they shall be excavated and backfilled by hand and any tree roots
encountered with a diameter of 25 mm or more shall be left unservered.
REASON: To ensure the retention and maintenance of trees and vegetation which is an important
feature of the area in accordance with policy CH7 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015 - 2030.

1.

NPPF Statement
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application by
assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including planning policies and any
representations that may have been received and subsequently determining to grant planning
permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within
the National Planning Policy Framework.
This decision has been taken in accordance with the requirement in the National Planning Policy
Framework, as set out in article 35, of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) Order 2015.

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

Page 14

Agenda Item 6
CRAWLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE - 21 October 2019
REPORT NO: PES/325(d)

REFERENCE NO: CR/2019/0634/FUL
LOCATION:
WARD:
PROPOSAL:

24 CLIVE WAY, POUND HILL, CRAWLEY
Pound Hill South and Worth
ERECTION OF FIRST FLOOR SIDE & REAR EXTENSIONS (AMENDED PLANS
RECEIVED)

TARGET DECISION DATE:
CASE OFFICER:

4 November 2019

Ms D. Angelopoulou

APPLICANTS NAME:
AGENTS NAME:

Mr & Mrs Bown
WPD Consultants

PLANS & DRAWINGS CONSIDERED:
Drawing Number
WPD6418/A/01
WPD6418/A/10
WPD6418/A/12
WPD6418/A/11
WPD6418/A/13
WPD6418/A/14

Revision
A
B
B
C
C
C

Drawing Title
Location & Block Plans
Existing Floor Plans
Existing Elevations
Existing & Proposed Roof Plans
Proposed Floor Plans
Proposed Elevations

CONSULTEE NOTIFICATIONS & RESPONSES:None.
NEIGHBOUR NOTIFICATIONS:22 and 26 Clive Way;
21, 23 and 25 Pearson Road.
RESPONSES RECEIVED:One representation has been received raising an objection to the use of timber cladding on the side and
rear elevations of the proposal as it would not be in keeping with the neighbouring properties in the road
and would appear out of place.
Officer’s comments: The proposal has been amended to use matching external materials (brick).
REASON FOR REPORTING TO COMMITTEE:The applicant is a member of staff.
THE APPLICATION SITE:1.1

The application site relates to a two storey end of terrace dwelling, located on the western side of
Clive Way within the neighbourhood of Pound Hill. The dwelling is brick built with a tiled roof. It has
solar panels on the rear roof slope and upper floor of the southern side elevation. It has a flat roofed
wrap-around single storey side and rear extension. To the rear of the property is a relatively large
rear garden with the boundaries marked by fence panels of approximately 1.8 metres in height.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6

There is also a small shed within the rear garden. The front curtilage is laid to gravel and provides 2
parking spaces.
1.2

The site is located within street of predominantly terraced properties.

THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:2.1

Planning permission is sought for the erection of first floor side and rear extensions. The proposal
has been amended. The main roof fronting the road would now have a dual pitch, with hipped roofs
to the rear extensions. The rear extension has also been reduced in size, with a 2.1m width of the
1st floor (closest to the adjoining No.22) now proposed to project 2.6m from the rear elevation whilst
the remaining 4.4m width of the 1st floor would project 3m from the original rear elevation. A
matching brick is now proposed.

2.2

The proposal would be positioned on the southern (side) and eastern (rear) elevations of the
dwelling, above the existing single storey wrap around extension. It would project 4m from the
original 1st floor of the southern side elevation, would be set back 0.13m from the original front
building line of the terrace. It would retain a 1m gap to the southern boundary. The eaves level
would match the existing eaves and the main roof ridge would match the existing roof.

2.3

Internally, the proposal would result in an extended main bathroom, and an additional bedroom with
en-suite bathroom and dressing room.

PLANNING HISTORY:3.1

CR/2015/0265/FUL – Erection of single storey side & rear extension – Permitted and implemented.

3.2

CR/2014/0339/FUL – Erection of single storey side & rear extension – Permitted with a mono-pitch
roof, but not implemented.

3.3

CR/2006/0543/FUL – Erection of two storey side extension, single storey rear extension and front
canopy (amended description) – Permitted but not implemented. It was approved with a pitched
roof, setback from the terrace elevation only at first floor level and set-down from main ridge line.

PLANNING POLICY:National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019 as amended in June 2019)
4.1

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in 2019 states that the purpose of the
planning system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development.





Section 2 – Achieving sustainable development. This section states that achieving sustainable
development means that the planning system has three overarching objectives: an economic
objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, a social objective – to
support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that a sufficient number and range of
homes can be provided to meet the needs of present and future generations, and an environmental
objective to contribute to protecting and enhancing our natural, built and historic environment. This
includes making effective use of land and helping to improve biodiversity.
Section 12 – Achieving well-designed places. The creation of high quality buildings and places is
fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key
aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make
development acceptable to communities.

Crawley Borough Local Plan (2015-2030) (adopted December 2015)
4.2

The following Local Plan policies are relevant to this application:


Policy SD1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development. In line with the planned
approach to Crawley as a new town, and the spatial patterns relating to the neighbourhood

Page 16

Agenda Item 6






principles, when considering development proposals the council will take a positive approach to
approving development which is sustainable.
Policy CH2: Principles of Good Urban Design in order to assist in the creation, retention or
enhancement of successful places.
Policy CH3: Normal Requirements of All New Development states all proposals for development
will be required to make a positive contribution to the area; be of a high quality urban design;
provide and retain a good standard of amenity for all nearby and future occupants of land and
buildings; be able to meet its own operational requirements necessary for the safe and proper use
of the site; retain existing individual or groups of trees; incorporate “Secure by Design” principles
and demonstrate how the Building for Life 12 criteria would be delivered.
Development proposals must adhere to any relevant supplementary planning guidance produced
by the council including residential extensions.
Policy IN4: Car and Cycle Parking Standards. Development will be permitted where the proposals
provide t/he appropriate amount of car and cycle parking to meet its needs when it is assessed
against the borough council’s car and cycle parking standards. These standards are contained
within the Planning Obligations and s106 Agreements Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
or any subsequent similar document.

Emerging Crawley Borough Local Plan 2020 – 2035 (June 2019)
4.3

The Local Plan Review 2020-2035 is at an early stage and therefore limited weight should be given
to the following applicable policies:






Policy SD1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development.
Policy CD2: Making Successful Places: Principles of Good Urban Design.
Policy CD3: Local Character and Design of New Development.
Policy CD6: Normal Requirements of All New Development.
Policy ST1: Development and Requirements for Sustainable Transport.

Urban Design Supplementary Planning Document (adopted October 2016)
4.4










The Urban Design SPD is a non-statutory document which supplements the policies of the Local
Plan and is applicable to this application. It contains guidelines on the standards the Council
expects for the public design and the design of extensions. In particular, it states that:
‘An extension on the side of a property will be prominent and it is important that it should work
successfully with its surroundings. The junction of a side extension with the existing building will
have to be considered and resolved through good design.’
‘A design solution that can be used to prevent the ‘terracing effect’ will leave a 2 metre setback
between the side extension and the adjacent property or site boundary. This solution may not be
appropriate in all cases and will be considered on a site by site basis, based on the character of the
area. Furthermore, where a side setback may not be suitable, it could be explored by setting the
side extension in from the front elevation.’
‘Rear extensions can significantly impact the amenity of neighbouring dwellings by leading to
overshadowing or a dominating appearance, but also have the potential to impact on the amenity of
the parent dwelling by reducing the overall size of a rear garden. Overshadowing or dominating
neighbours’ houses and gardens can be avoided by keeping rear extensions relatively small as
compared to the size of the main buildings and the gardens in which they stand. What constitutes
an acceptable size and design of extension depends on individual circumstances.’
‘One or two storey rear extensions will need to maintain a minimum distance of 21 metres between
the rear windows of an opposing dwelling and the rear facing windows of the extension, in order to
avoid any potential overlooking and privacy issues.’
‘A rear extension should not consume the entirety of a dwelling’s private amenity space. A garden
should be retained with a minimum depth of 10.5m measured from the extension’s rear external wall
to the property’s rear boundary in length, in order to ensure adequate private outdoor space.’
‘Side and rear extensions for detached dwellings, when they include more than one storey can
cause overshadowing and overlooking into a neighbour’s property. Often, a 60 degree guide test
can be applied for two storey extensions so as to avoid indicative overshadowing on a neighbouring
property.

Page 17








4.5

Agenda Item 6

‘Applying the 60̊ guide test:
The guide test can be applied to detached, semi-detached and terraced houses.
An extension should not encroach into an area measured by drawing a 60̊ angle from the nearest
edge of a neighbour’s window or door aperture.’
‘An extension with good design in mind will relate appropriately to the parent dwelling’s character
and style, dimensions, materials and finishes of the parent dwelling and the character of the
neighbourhood. Furthermore, when considering an extension it is important to think about the
impact the development may have on your neighbours and the wider area’.
‘Development should incorporate materials and colours that match the existing dwelling’.
‘The roof form above an extension will contribute to the appearance of the extension and the
dwelling as a whole. A roof design that sits in harmony with the existing roof will usually be more
acceptable’.
It also includes the Crawley minimum car parking. For 3 plus bedroom dwellings in this location, the
minimum standards are 2-3 car parking spaces.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:5.1

The main planning issues in the determination of this application are:
 The design & appearance of the proposal and its impact on the dwelling, street scene & wider
area
 The impact on neighbouring properties and amenities
 Parking considerations

The design & appearance of the proposal and its impact on the dwelling, street scene & wider area
5.2

The proposed first floor side and rear extensions as amended would replicate the existing roof
design and would only be set back from the existing terrace’s frontage by 0.13m. The materials
would match the existing dwelling. The proposal would leave 1m gap to the southern site boundary
which is shared with No.26 Clive Way. This property is set 5.5m away from the application site and
has a single storey outbuilding on the shared boundary. Due to this separation distance between
the proposal and the neighbouring property, it is considered that the proposed first floor side and
rear extensions would comply with the guidance contained within the Urban Design SPD and would
not therefore result in terracing effect.

5.3

The rear hipped roofs would not be particularly visible within the streetscene given their position
behind the main bulk of the house and it is considered they would not result in a detrimental impact
on the streetscene.

5.4

Overall, it is considered that the scale and design of the proposal as amended is acceptable and
would not be harmful to the street scene/character of the area. It would therefore be in accordance
with the Local Plan Policies, the guidance in the Urban Design SPD, and the relevant paragraphs of
the NPPF.

The impact on neighbouring properties and amenities
5.5

The properties that would be most affected by the proposal are No.22 Clive Way to the north and
No.26 Clive Way to the south.

5.6

The proposed first floor rear extension, as amended, would project 2.6m from the original rear
elevation and would be sited 3.2m from the shared boundary with No.22 Clive Way. The Urban
Design SPD requires that two storey rear extensions should satisfy the 60 degree test as a means
to determine their acceptability in terms of overshadowing and loss of light. The proposed depth of
the proposal as amended would not breach a 60 degree line dawn from the closest window and it is
considered acceptable in terms of and overbearing impact, overshadowing and loss of light. No
windows are proposed along the north flank (side) elevation of the extensions and as such they
would not result in harmful overlooking or loss of privacy on No.22. It is however considered
expedient to control the insertion of windows in this elevation to prevent overlooking of this
neighbouring house.

Page 18

Agenda Item 6

5.7

The proposed extension would have an obscure glazed bathroom window at first floor level on the
southern elevation, which would face the northern flank of the neighbouring dwelling, No 26 Clive
Way. This neighbouring property has a small side window which appears to be a secondary
bedroom window. It is not therefore considered that the proposal would result in a detrimental
impact on the amenities of No.26 in terms of loss of privacy or overlooking provided there is a
condition ensuring that this bathroom window would be obscure glazed with restricted opening and
that no other windows could be installed in this elevation without first receiving planning permission.

5.8

The separation distance between the proposal and the northern elevation of No.26 would be 7m.
Given this separation distance and the fact that No.26’s side window is secondary, the proposal is
not considered to have an adverse impact on the amenities of No.26 in terms of loss of light,
overdominance and loss of outlook.

5.9

Given the separation distances with the properties to the rear, it is not considered that the proposal
would have a detrimental impact on the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of these neighbouring
properties.

5.10

Overall, in terms of neighbouring amenity, the proposal as amended is not considered to have any
detrimental impact on the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of neighbouring properties and would
accord with the relevant Local Plan Policies, the Urban Design SPD and the NPPF.

Parking considerations
5.11

The proposal would result in the property becoming a 3-bedroom house. The front curtilage is laid to
gravel and has space to accommodate 2 vehicles. According to the Urban Design SPD the
minimum parking standards for a 3 plus bedroom dwelling in this location are 2-3 spaces. As such
the parking arrangements are considered satisfactory and would accord with the guidance for a
dwelling of this size and location, and Local Plan Policies CH3 and IN4 and the NPPF.

CONCLUSIONS:6.1

In conclusion, it is considered that the scale, massing and design of the proposal as amended is
acceptable, would not have an adverse impact on the character and appearance of the dwelling or
the street scene. There would not be a detrimental impact on the parking arrangements and the
amenities enjoyed by the occupants of neighbouring properties would be protected. The proposed
development as amended is considered to accord with the policies outlined in the NPPF (2019), the
Crawley Borough Local Plan (2015-2030) and the Urban Design SPD (2016).

RECOMMENDATION RE: CR/2019/0634/FUL
Permit subject to the following conditions:
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years from the date of
this permission.
REASON: To comply with Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the
approved plans as listed below save as varied by the conditions hereafter:
(Drawing numbers to be added)
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3.

The materials and finishes of the external walls and roofs of the extensions hereby permitted shall
match in colour and texture those of the existing dwelling.
REASON: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local
Plan 2015-2030.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6

4.

The first floor windows on the southern elevation of the development hereby permitted shall at all
times be glazed with obscured glass and permanently non-opening unless the parts of the window
that can be opened are more than 1.7m above the floor to the room in which window is installed.
REASON: To protect the amenities and privacy of No.22 and No.26 Clive Way, in accordance with
Policy CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030.

5.

No windows (other than those shown on the plans hereby approved) shall be constructed above the
first floor of the southern and northern elevations of the development hereby permitted which face the
side boundaries with No.22 and No.26 Clive Way without the prior permission of the Local Planning
Authority on an application in that behalf.
REASON: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining property in accordance with Policy
CH3 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030.

1.

NPPF Statement
In determining this planning application, the Local Planning Authority assessed the proposal against
all material considerations and has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner
based on seeking solutions where possible and required, by:
• Liaising with agent and discussing the proposal where considered appropriate and necessary in a
timely manner during the course of the determination of the application.
• Seeking amended plans to address identified issues during the course of the application.
This decision has been taken in accordance with the requirement in the National Planning Policy
Framework, as set out in article 35, of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) Order 2015.

Page 20

Agenda Item 6

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Crawley Borough Council
Report to Planning Committee
21st October 2019

Crawley Borough Council Tree Preservation Order -Trees To Rear Of 8-12
Normanhurst Close, Three Bridges - 07/2019
Report of the Head of Economy and Planning – PES/339

1.

Purpose

1.1

This report relates to the Crawley Borough Council -Trees To Rear Of 8-12 Normanhurst Close, Three
Bridges - 07/2019 Tree Preservation Order. The Committee is requested to consider the objection
received and determine whether to confirm the Tree Preservation Order with or without modification
for continued protection or, not to confirm the Tree Preservation Order.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Committee CONFIRM the Tree Preservation Order -Trees To Rear Of 812 Normanhurst Close, Three Bridges - 07/2019 without modification.

3.

Reasons for the Recommendation

3.1

The tree(s) are considered to have good landscape amenity value in the surrounding area.
The tree(s) are prominant in the locality and have significant amenity value.
The tree(s) contribute to the environment by providing a visual and acoustic screen.
The tree(s) are clearly visible from the public highway.
The tree(s) are visually important in the local area.

4.

Background

4.1

The trees the subject of this Order are a line of trees located within the rear gardens of numbers 8-12
Normanhurst Close and bordering Haslett Avenue East. The group of trees consist of 1no. Horse
Chestnut, 12 no. Hawthorn, 17 no. Leyland Cypress, 1 no. Scots Pine, 3 no. Wild Cherry and 2 no.
Oaks. The trees form a continuous screen separating Haslett Avenue East from the more residential
areas to the north. The base of the stems could not be assessed as access to the gardens was not
possible but the trees appeared to be in good general health and condition at the time of inspection.
A photograph of the trees are attached at the end of this report.

4.2

The Tree Preservation Order was made following receipt of a TPO status enquiry submitted by the
owner of no. 8 Normanhurst Close stating of their intention to cut down the Horse Chestnut tree
located in the rear garden. When the tree as well as the other trees that make up the group were
found not to be protected, a desktop assessment was made followed by a site visit, which determined
that the trees made a strong visual contribution to the surrounding area with good amenity. The trees
form an important screen between the residential properties in Normanhurst Close and Haslett
Avenue East/A2220 which is a busy route between the town centre and Three Bridges Station. The
Local Planning Authority (LPA) therefore decided that is was expedient in the interests of amenity to
protect the horse chestnut and other trees in the adjoining rear gardens by the making of a Tree
Preservation Order in order to ensure their continued contribution to green amenity of the area. The
trees provide part of a strong landscaped frontage along the northern side of Haslett Avenue East
and are part of the Structural Landscaping belt along this road identified as an important feature under
policy CH7 of the Crawley Borough Local Plan 2015-2030.

Page 23

Agenda Item 7

4.3

The provisional Tree Preservation Order was made on 17th May 2019 and remains in force for a period
of six months until 17th November 2019. If the Order is confirmed, the protection becomes permanent,
if the Order is not confirmed it ceases to have effect.

5.

Notification/ Consultation/Representation

5.1

Following the making of the Tree Preservation Order, the Council served a Copy of the Order, Map
and Notice on the owner(s)/occupiers(s) of the land and other interested parties as set out below:
Owners and occupiers of the land:
8 Normanhurst Close, Crawley, RH10 1YL
9 Normanhurst Close, Crawley, RH10 1YL
10 Normanhurst Close, Crawley, RH10 1YL
11 Normanhurst Close, Crawley, RH10 1YL
12 Normanhurst Close, Crawley, RH10 1YL
Owners and occupiers of adjoining land affected by the TPO:
West Sussex County Council, County Hall, West Street, Chichester, PO19 1RG

5.2

The LPA is required to consider any objections or representations made within 28 days of the date of
the Order before deciding whether to confirm a TPO. The notification period for objections ended on
21st June 2019. Confirmation of the Order is required within six months of the date upon which the
Order was provisionally made.

5.3

One representation has been received from the owner of 8 Normanhurst Close objecting to the Tree
Preservation Order as it includes the Horse Chestnut. The following reasons have been submitted
for consideration.
Safety issues



The objector has a dog and Horse Chestnut (flowers and conkers) are poisonous to dogs. The dog
has been sick from eating the leaves and blossom
The tree is diseased, decayed at the base and could be potentially dangerous

6.

Amenity Value/Assessment and Consideration of the Representations

6.1

The Horse Chestnut flowers between mid-May and mid-June, therefore flower petals will fall in the
garden for only a few weeks of the year, these can easily be cleared away as part of general garden
maintenance. Conkers will fall from the tree steadily throughout autumn however these are large
fruits and can be easily picked up by hand as and when they fall.

6.2

It is considered that the rear garden can be kept clear of flowers and conkers with minimal effort and
the existence of the blossom and conkers is not therefore considered justification for removing a tree
which has strong visual amenity in its own right as well as cohesive strength with the rest of the group.
Horse chestnut trees are also considered to be a vulnerable species due to emergence of leaf pests
and disease.

6.3

There are many species of tree that are poisonous to dogs, some of the commonly encountered being
Oak, Cherry Laurel, Wild Cherry (can be fatal), Holly, Bay Laurel, Walnut, Box, Privet, Eucalyptus and
Yew (can be fatal) along with a number of other plants. These trees and plants are omnipresent in
gardens, parks and the countryside and it is ultimately the responsibility of the dog owner to train their
dog not to eat things they shouldn’t. It is not considered that the potential risk to pets is justification
for the removal of important trees with amenity value where these are present in gardens. Justification
for removal on this basis would set a dangerous precedent for the removal of important garden trees
across the Borough which make a significant contribution to the character of the town.

Page 24

Agenda Item 7

6.4

No evidence that the tree was diseased or dangerous was submitted at the time of the initial enquiry.
From the site visit the crown of tree appeared in good health with no obvious signs of significant
structural defects based on a visual inspection from the roadside of Haslett Avenue East. The base
of the horse chestnut has now been inspected and while there is a stem wound on the trunk from past
infection, the tree appears stable.

6.5

The imposition of a TPO does not prevent works from being carried out on trees were there is clear
arboricultural justification for example, if it can be demonstrated that the Horse Chestnut is in a
dangerous condition and, its retention is not viable, consent can be granted for its removal and a
suitable replacement planted in its place as enforced by a replanting condition, thus maintaining the
tree cover and ensuring this important resource is protected.

7.

Implications

7.1

7.2

7.3

Human Rights Act 1998
The referral of this matter to the Planning Committee is in accordance with Article 6 of the Human
Rights Act 1998, the right to a fair hearing, which is an absolute right. Those persons who made
representations in objection to the TPO are entitled to attend the Planning Committee meeting and to
make any further verbal representations at the meeting. The Planning Committee must give full
consideration to any such representations.
Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol – the right to respect for private/family life and the protection
of properly – also needs to be considered. These are qualified rights and can only be interfered with
in accordance with the law and if necessary to control the use of property in accordance with the law
and if necessary to control the use of property in accordance with the general interest. The
recommended continued protection of these trees by confirming the TPO is considered to be in the
general interest of the community and is considered to be both proportionate and justified.
Planning legislation
The Council’s powers to make and confirm Tree Preservation Orders are set out in sections 198-201
of Part VIII of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended and the procedures for the
making of such Orders is in the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England)
Regulations 2012.

8.

Background Papers

8.1

The Crawley Borough Council Tree Preservation Order Trees To Rear Of 8-12 Normanhurst Close,
Three Bridges - 07/2019

Contact Officer: Russell Spurrell
Direct Line: 01293 438033
Email: russell.spurrell@crawley.gov.uk

Page 25

Agenda Item 7
SCHEDULE
SPECIFICATION OF TREES

Trees Specified Individually
(encircled in black on the map)
Reference on Map

Description

Situation

NONE
Groups of Trees
(within a broken black line on the map)
Reference on Map
G1

Description

Situation

Horse Chestnut, Hawthorn (12), Leyland Cypress (17),
Scots Pine, Wild Cherry (3), English Oak (2)

Grid Ref: TQ-27972-36607

Woodlands
(within a continuous black line on the map)
Reference on Map

Description

Situation

NONE
Reference to an Area
(within a dotted black line on the map)
Reference on Map

Description

Situation

NONE

Page 26

Agenda Item 7

Tree Preservation Order No 07/2019
Trees To Rear Of 8-12 Normanhurst Close, Three
Bridges

Clem Smith
Head of Economy and Planning Services

The scale shown is approximate and should not be used for accurate measurement.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 0100023717

Page 27

Scale

1:1250

Date

03/10/2019

Agenda Item 7

Photo showing protected trees viewed from Haslett Avenue East

Photo showing protected trees viewed from Haslett Avenue East

Page 28

Agenda Item 7
Photo showing Horse Chestnut tree

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Crawley Borough Council
Report to Planning Committee
21 October 2019

Section 106 Monies – Q1&2 2019/20
Report of the Head of Economy and Planning, PES/337
1.

Purpose

1.1.

Developers are often required through Section 106 planning agreements to make financial
contributions towards the provision or improvement of infrastructure if a need is generated
by the new developments. These monies must be spent as set out in the planning
agreements and in accordance with government guidance.

1.2.

This report summarises all the S106 monies received/ spent and committed to project
schemes in Q1&2 of the financial year 2019/20.

2.

Recommendations
That the Committee:

2.1.

Notes the update on S106 monies received, spent and committed in Q1&2 of the financial
year 2019/20.

3.

Reason for Recommendations

3.1.

The Council’s Policy Statement of S106 Monies through Planning Agreements requests an
update to be reported to the Planning Committee.

4.

S106 Monies Received (to date) 2019/20.

4.1.

During the Q1&2 of the financial year 2019/20 a total of £142,291.95 of monies were paid
to the Council by developers in accordance with their obligations under the S106
agreements with the local planning authority.

4.2.

The following table provides a breakdown of the amounts received by category of spend
and the developments from which these monies were received.

S106 Spend
Category

Open Space
Transport
Tree Contribution
Affordable Housing
Affordable Housing

Ref

Address

CR/2016/0662/FUL

Car Park, 11-13 The Boulevard,
Northgate, Crawley

CR/2018/0744/FUL
CR/2018/0343/FUL

Affordable Housing
Manor Royal PR

CR/2018/0837/FUL
CR/2018/0473/FUL

Tree Contribution

CR/2017/0760/FUL

Oakleigh, Church Road, Pound Hill
44 Albany Road, West Green
Land Adjacent to 139 Warren Drive,
Ifield
Diamond Point, Fleming Way
9 Woolborough Road, Northgate,
Crawley

Page 31

Value

£10,981.85
£20,007.00
£63,722.35
£10,500.00
£10,000.00
£9,450.00
£9,560.00
£8,070.75
£142,291.9

5.

S106 Monies Spent (to date) 2019/20.

5.1. In Q1&2 of 2019/20, a total of £951,713.15 of S106 monies were spent by the Council and West Sussex County Council on
infrastructure projects. The following table lists the projects on which the funds were spent.
Project
Cost

Status

Page 32

Project Name

Lead Org

Education

Ifield Community College, Equipment

WSCC

-£ 90,110.05

Funds Transferred

Manor Royal PR

CGP Manor Royal Junction

CGP

-£ 29,698.43

Funds Transferred

Open Space

Ewhurst Playing Fields

CBC

-£ 4,693.48

In Progress

Open Space

Kidborough Road Gossops Green

CBC

-£ 67,353.02

In Progress

Open Space

Memorial Gardens

CBC

-£

242.15

In Progress

Open Space

Stoney Croft

CBC

-£ 6,681.52

In Progress

Transport

Bike It 2017/19

CBC

-£ 15,000.00

Complete

Transport

CGP Manor Royal Junction

CGP

-£297,871.37

Funds Transferred

Transport
Transport

CGP Manor Royal W&C
CGP MR Superhubs

CGP
CGP

-£ 38,997.35
-£ 3,322.30

In Progress
In Progress

Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport

CGP Station Gateway
CGP TC Superhubs
CGP Town Centre W&C
West Green Crossing
WSCC Ifield Avenue Walking Cycling

CGP
CGP
CGP
WSCC
WSCC

-£154,846.81
-£
723.11
-£ 22,555.97
-£ 10,075.00
-£ 99,100.53

In Progress
In Progress
In Progress
Funds Transferred
Funds Transferred

Town Centre
Town Centre
Town Centre
Transport

CGP Station Gateway
CGP Station Gateway
CGP Station Gateway
CGP Three Bridges Station

CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC

-£ 7,476.19
-£ 17,075.00
-£ 12,778.75
-£ 73,112.12

In Progress
In Progress
In Progress
In Progress

-£951,713.15

Agenda Item 8

S106 Spend Category

6.

S106 Monies Committed (to date) 2019/20.

6.1. A further £769,998.87 of S106 monies was committed to infrastructure projects during Q1&2 of 2019/20, through the Council’s
agreed approval process. The following table provides a breakdown of the individual project schemes to which the S106 funds
were committed.

Page 33

S106 Spend
Category

Lead
Org

Project Name

Project Cost

Due to
Complete

Status

Transport
Manor Royal PR
Town Centre
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport
Tree Contribution

CBC
CGP
CGP
CGP
CGP
CGP
CGP
CBC

Bike It 2019-2021
CGP MR Superhubs
CGP Station Gateway
CGP MR Superhubs
CGP MR W&C
CGP TC Superhubs
CGP TC W&C
Tree Planting Programme Phase 1

£56,617.41
£88,886.88
£108,354.25
£116,065.27
£191,655.11
£67,245.89
£124,374.06
£16,800.00

2021/22
2020/21
2022/23
2020/21
2020/21
2020/21
2020/21
2019/20

On Going
On Going
On Going
On Going
On Going
On Going
On Going
On Going

£769,998.87

S106 Spend
Category

Lead
Org

Project Name

Manor Royal PR

CGP

CGP MR Superhubs

Open Space

CBC

Broadfield Play area x 2

Open Space

CBC

Ditchling Hill, Southgate. Improve Type B Play Area

Open Space

CBC

Ewhurst Playing Fields, Ifield. Improve Type B Play Area

Open Space

CBC

Gainsborough Road Play Area, Tilgate. Improve Type B Play Area

Open Space

CBC

Kidborough Road, Gossops Green

Open Space

CBC

Memorial Garden

Project
Cost

Due to
Complete

£48,498.33

2020/21

£273.66

Complete

£205.04

Complete

£68,890.81

2019/20

£409.28

Complete

£1,231.18

2019/20

£189,757.85

2019/ 20

Agenda Item 8

6.2. The following table lists the projects which had S106 funds committed prior to 01.04.19 and are still ongoing/ final invoices to be
submitted.

Open Space

CBC

Peter's playing field

£24,492.85

2018/19

Open Space

CBC

Stoney Croft Ifield

£16,902.68

2019/20

Open Space
Town Centre
Town Centre
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport

CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC
CGP
CGP
CGP
CGP
CBC

Three Bridges Playing Field
High St Public Real Improvement Scheme
Mosaic Memorial Gardens
Bus Shelters
CGP MR Superhubs
CGP TC W&C
CGP Three Bridges Station
CGP Three Bridges Station
Crawters Brook Cycle Path, Mall Path

£85.28
£9,307.88
£20,000.00
£104,675.73
£6,079.23
£45,256.62
£61,514.48
£37,192.71
£51,124.34

Complete
TBC
2019/20
2019/20
2020/21
2020/21
2021/22
2021/22
TBC

£685,897.95

Page 34

7.

Available Funds and potential future spend

7.2. The table below lists the proposed infrastructure projects, which will be coming forward in due course for consideration through
the S106 approval process.
Contribution Type

Project Name

Provisionally
Allocated

Delivery
by

Lead
Organisation

Status

Library

Crawley Library in 2017- shelving

£

7,079.38

TBC

WSCC

Delegated Process

Library

Dementia Pack

£

4,608.00

TBC

WSCC

Delegated Process

Library

Business & Information services, Library

£ 26,455.33

TBC

CBC

Process to Commence

Manor Royal PR

Specific Clause

£ 31,028.00

TBC

MRBID

Process to Commence

Manor Royal PR

Pocket Parks Manor Royal

£

TBC

MRBID

Process to Commence

1,400.00

Agenda Item 8

7.1. Officers at the Council have identified a programme of infrastructure projects to the value of £1,406,266.68 which are intended
to be delivered by 2021/22. The individual projects that make up this programme will be subject to the existing S106 approval
process before any formal commitment is made. As of 01.10.19 there remains £819,438 of uncommitted S106 monies for which
projects have yet to be identified.

Page 35

Public realm at Crawter's Brook

£ 22,846.00

TBC

MRBID

Process to Commence

Manor Royal PR

Gateway 2 Project/ street furniture Z3

£

9,960.30

TBC

MRBID

Process to Commence

Manor Royal PR

CGP Superhubs

£

9,560.00

2021/22

CBC

Process to Commence

Open Space

4 type A Play Areas, Ifield

£ 52,000.00

2019/20

CBC

BAG done delegated to commence

Open Space
Open Space
Open Space
Open Space
Open Space
Open Space
Open Space
Open Space
Town Centre
Town Centre
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport
Transport
CCTV
Transport
Transport
Education
Open Space

2 Type A Play Areas, Pound Hill
Perkstead Court Play Area, Bewbush
1 Type A Play Areas, Bewbush
Medlar Close, Langley Green Play Area
Meadowlands Type B Play Area, WG
Meadowlands Type B Play Area, WG
Southgate Playing Field
Wakehams Green
Town Centre CGP
Art within the Town Centre
WSCC Drop Crossing, Borough wide
WSCC School Keep Clear
Safer Route to School Hilltops
Maidenbower Com Centre Bike Racks
Ifield Bus Shelter Heritage
Car Club
Three Bridges Cycle Path
WSCC Travel Plan - Manor Royal
Car Club
Specific Clause
Specific Clause
Specific Clause
Specific Clause

£ 26,000.00
£ 20,000.00
£ 13,000.00
£ 65,000.00
£ 40,000.00
£ 25,000.00
£ 61,428.06
£ 65,000.00
£ 2,925.00
£ 40,000.00
£ 3,265.00
£ 8,125.00
£ 9,391.60
£ 12,310.91
£ 7,000.00
£ 53,382.00
£ 60,000.00
£ 3,048.27
£ 28,325.00
£ 90,928.66
£ 107,894.00
£ 498,200.17
£ 1,106.00

2019/20
2019/20
2020/21
2019/20
2020/21
2020/21
TBC
2021/22
2020/21
2020/21
2017/18
2017/18
2020/21
TBC
2019/20
2020/21
2020/21
2020/21
2020/21
TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC

CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC
WSCC
WSCC
WSCC
CBC
CBC
CBC
CBC
WSCC
CBC
TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC

BAG done delegated to commence
BAG done delegated to commence
BAG done delegated to commence
BAG done delegated to commence
BAG done delegated to commence
Process to Commence
See Note
BAG done delegated to commence
Process to Commence
Process to Commence
Delegated Process
Process to Commence
Process to Commence
Process to Commence
Process to Commence
Process to Commence
Process to Commence
Process to Commence
Process to Commence
TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC

£1,406,266.68

Agenda Item 8

Manor Royal PR

8.

Summary of S106 Monies

8.1. The table below provides an overview of the S106 monies spent, received and committed during Q1&2 2019/20 and shows the
change in the balance of S106 at the end of Q2 of the financial year 2019/20 (far right hand column) compared to the balance of
S106 funds brought forward at the beginning of the year (2nd column from the left).
On Going Projects.

S106
Categories of
Spend

Balance
Brought
Forward
01.04.19

Received
Q1&Q2
2019/20

S106
Spend
Q1&Q2
2019/20

Committed
prior to
Q1&Q2
2019/20

Committed
Q1&Q2
2019/20

Provisionally
Allocated
Q1&Q2
2019/20

Uncommitted/
not
Provisional
Allocation
01.10.19

Total Balance
2019/20

Project
Ongoing

Page 36

Transport
Manor Royal
PR

Affordable
Housing

Tree
Contribution
Total

£20,007

-£715,605

£305,843

£555,958

£355,345

£0

£1,217,146

£232,318

£9,560

-£29,698

£48,498

£88,887

£74,794

£0

£212,180

£55,658
£1,006,739
£217,917
£90,925
£739,395
£53,291

£0
£10,982
£0
£0
£0
£0

£0
-£78,970
-£37,330
£0
-£90,110
£0

£0
£302,249
£29,308
£0
£0
£0

£0
£0
£108,354
£0
£0
£0

£38,143
£368,534
£42,925
£0
£498,200
£28,325

£17,515
£267,968
£0
£90,925
£151,084
£24,966

£55,658
£938,751
£180,587
£90,925
£649,285
£53,291

£65,337

£29,950

£0

£0

£0

£0

£95,287

£95,287

£116,700

£71,793

£0

£0

£16,800

£0

£171,693

£188,493

£4,491,023

£142,292

-£951,713

£685,898

£769,999

£1,406,267

£819,438

£3,681,602

Contact Officer: Mandy Smith, Regeneration Programme Officer.
Tel: 01293438285. Email: mandy.smith@crawley.gov.uk

Agenda Item 8

Library
Open Space
Town Centre
Fire
Education
CCTV

£1,912,744

